UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY
REGION S
77 WEST JACKSON BOULEVARD
CHICAGQ. IL-60604-3590

JAND 32017

REPLY TO THE ATTENTION OF:

WC-151

CERTIFIED MAIL 7009 1680 0000 7646 0255
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Mr. Michael Pellin

President

United Transportation Group, Inc.
1150 East 145" Street

East Chicago, Indiana 46312

Subject: United Transportation Group, Inc.
Consent Agreement and Final Order

Docket No. CWA-05-2017-0001

Dear Mr. Pellin:

[ have enclosed one copy of the fully executed Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) in
the resolution of the above case. 1t was filed | ! 3 !XOI’Z with the Regional Hearing Clerk.

The penalty amount agreed upon is $1,000, which is due 30 days after the effective date of this
CAFO. A Certified or Cashier Check should be made payable to the “Treasurer, United States of
America” at the following address:

[for checks sent by regular U.S. Postal Service mail}
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

Fines and Penalties

Cincinnati Finance Center

P.O. Box 979077

St. Louis, Missouri 63197-9000

[for checks sent by express mail]

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Government Lockbox 979077

11.S. EPA Fines and Penalties

1005 Convention Plaza

Mai! Station SL-MO-C2-GL

St. Louis, Missouri 63101

RecyclediBecyeiable e Printed with Vegetable Cif Bazed Inks on 100% Recyciad Paper {100% Pest-Consumer)



When submitting your check, please be sure that the Case Docket No. and the Billing Docket
No. (BD) are included at the bettom of your check.

There is now an On Line Payvment Option available through the Department of Treasury at
https://www.pay.gov which allows you to make payments using your credit card, checking, or
savings account. Using the Search Public Forms field (left side of page) enter “SFO 1.1 to
access the EPA miscellaneous Payments-Cincinnati Finance Center Form. Follow the
mstructions for payment.

A copy of the check or electronic transfer must be sent to:

Regional Hearing Clerk

Planning and Management Division (19J)
EPA, Region 5

77 West Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, IHlino1s 60604-3590

Kathleen Schneiders

Office of Regional Counsel (C-14J)
EPA, Region 5

77 West Jackson Boulevard
Chicago, lllinois 60604-3590

Ray Cullen

Water Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Branch (WC-157)
EPA, Region 5

77 West Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, llinois 60604-3590

If you have any guestions, please contact Ray Cullen at (312) 886-2785 or Kathleen Schneiders
at (312) 353-8912.

Sincerely,
Corb

- Patrick F. Kuefler, Chief
Water Enforcement & Compliance Assurance Branch

Enclosure

ce: Michael Scanlon, via email
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This administrative action is commenced and concluded under section 309(g) of t;;\“‘“w
Clean Water Act (CWA), 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), and sections 22.13(b) and 22.18(b) of the
Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Adminisirative Assessment of Civil
Penalties and the Revocation/Terminatiorn or Suspension of Permits found at 40 C.F.R.
§§22.13(b) and 22.18(b).

CONSENT AGREEMENT AND FINAL ORDER

2. According to 40 CE.R. § 22. 13(b),- where the parties agree to settle one or more causes of
action before the filing of a compliant, an administrative action may be commenced and
concluded simultancously by the 1ssuance of a Consent Agreemerit and Final Order

(CAFO).

Complainant 1s, by lawful delegation, the Director of the Water Division, U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5.

4. Respondent is United Trarsportation Group, Inc. (_Respondent or UTG). Respondent is a
“person” as that term is defined at section 502(5) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(3).

The parties agree that seftling this action without the filing of a compliant or the
adjudication of any issue of fact or law is in their interest and in the public interest.

6. Respondent consents to the terms of this CAFO, 1nc}udm0 the assessment of the civil
penalty specified below.

JURISDICTION AND WEIVER OF RIGHT TO HEARING

For purposes of this CAFO, Respondent Stipuiates that EPA has jurisdiction over the -
subject matter of this CAFO and waives any jurisdictional objections it may have.

Respondent waives its right to request a hearing as provided at 40 C.F.R. § 22.15(c), any
right to contest the allegations in this CAFQ, and its right to appeal this CAFO.
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By executing this CAFO, the Respondent does not admit liability or admit Complainant’s
factual allegations set forth in this CAFO. The Respondent’s execution of this CAFO
does not constitute a waiver or admission of any kind, including without limitation a
waiver of any defense, legal or equitable, which Respondent may have in this or any
other administrative or judicial proceeding, other than a proceeding to enforce this
CAFQ.

STATUTORY AND REGULATORY BACKGROUND

Section 301(a) of the CWA, 33 US.C. § 1311(a), prohibits the discharge of any pollutant,
unless the discharge is in compliance with various sections of the CWA, including
Section 307 of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1317.

Section 307(b) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1317(b), states “[t]he Admintstrator shall...
publish proposed regulations establishing pretreatment standards for introduction of
pollutants into treatment works. .. which are publicly owned for those pollutants which
are determined not to be susceptible to treatment by such treatment works or which
would interfere with the operation of such treatment works.”

Pursuant to 307(b) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1317(b), the Administrator published
“General Pretreatment Regulations for Existing and New Sources™ on January 28, 1981,
codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 403. By the terms of this reguiation, the requirements of Part
403 became effective three years from the date of promulgation.

Section 307(d) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1317(d), states that “[alfter the effective date of
any... pretreatment standard promulgated under this section, it shall be unlawful for any
owner or operator of any source to operate any source in violation of any such...
pretreatment standard.”

Section 309(g) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g), authorizes the Administrator to assess
a Class II civil penalty under Section 309(g)(2)B) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C.

§ 1319(2)(2)B), after consultation with the State, when the Administrator finds, on the
basis of any information available, that a person has violated Section 301 of the CWA,
33US.C.§ 1311

YIOLATIONS

UTG owns and operates a Transportation Equipment Cleaner (TEC) and transloading
facility located at 1150 East 145th Street, East Chicago, Indiana (the Facility). The
Facility discharges industrial process wastewater to the City of East Chicago’s sanitary
Sewer. :

The City of East Chicago (East Chicago), through the East Chicago Sanitary District
{ECSD), owns and operates a publicly owned treatment works (POTW) located at 5201
Indianapolis Boulevard, Fast Chicago, Indiana. The POTW collects and treats residential,
commercial, and industrial waste,
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40 CF.R. § 403.1(b)(1) states the General Pretreatment Regulations for Existing and
New Sources of Pollution applies to pollutants from non-domestic sources covered by
Pretreatment Standards which are indirectly discharged into or otherwise introduced into
POTWs as defined in § 403.3. 40 C.F.R. § 403.1(b)(4) states that the regulations apply to
any new or existing source subject to Pretreatment Standards.

40 C.F.R. § 403.3(c) delines the term “Approval Authority” to mean the Director in an
NPDES State with an approved State pretreatment program and the appropriate Regional
Administrator in a pon-NPDES State or NPDES State without an approved State
pretreatment progratan.

40 CF.R. § 403.3(f)(1) states that the term “Control Authority” refers to the POTW if the
POTW's Pretreatment Program Submission has been approved by the Approval

Authority.

U.S. EPA approved ECSD’s pretreatment program on February 14, 1986. The
pretreatment program and regulatory provisions for the pretreatment program are
incorporated in ECSD’s NPDES Permit, No. IN0022829, under Part III - Requlrement to
Operate a Pretreatment Program.

EPA 1s the “Approval Authority™ and ECSD is the “Control Authority™ for the Facility as
these terms are used in this Order and as defined in the General Pretreatment Reoulatmns
at 40 C.F.R. §§ 403.3(c) and (f).

40 C.F.R. § 403.3(3) states that the term “Indirect Discharge”™ or “Discharge” means the
introduction of pollutants into a POTW from any non-domestic source regulated under
section 307(b}, {c), or (d) of the CWA.

40 C.F.R. § 403.3(3) defines the term “Industrial User™ to mean a source of Indirect
Discharge.

UTG 1s an Industrial User subject to the General Pretreatment Regulations at 40 CF.R.
§ 403 as these terms are used in this Order and as defined in the General Pretreatment
Regulations at 40 C.F.R. §§ 403.3(1) and (j). :

40 C.F.R. § 403.3(v){1)(1} states that a Significant Industrial User (SIU) means all
Industrial Users subject to Categorical Pretreatment Standards under 40 C.F.R. § 403.6
and the Efftuent Gudelines and Standards for Point Source Categories at 40 C.F.R.
chapter I, subchapter N.

On August 14, 2000, EPA promulgated the Pretreatment standards for existing sources,
Transportation Equipment Cleaning Point Source Category, Subpart A at 40 C.F.R.

§ 442.15 and Subpart B at 40 CF.R. § 442.25. 65 Fed. Reg. 49700 (August 14, 2000) and
at 70 Fed. Reg. 5061 (February 1, 2005).

40 C.F.R. Part 442, Subpart A, at § 442.10, states that the provisions for the
Transportation Equipment Cleaning Point Source Category, Subpart A for Tank Truck:s

[FS)
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are applicable to “.__discharges resulting from the cleaning of tank trucks and intermodal
tank containers which have been used to transport chemical or petroleum cargos.”

The Pretreatment standards for existing sources under 46 C.F.R. § 442.15 state that no
later than August 14, 2003, any existing source subject to this subpart which introduces
pollutants into a POTW must achieve pretreatment standards for non-polar material,
copper, and mercury.

40 C.F.R. Part 442, Subpart B, at § 442.20, states that the provisions for the
Transportation Equipment Cleaming Point Source Category, Subpart B for Rail Tank
Cars, are applicable to “...discharges resulting frorm the cleaning of rail tank cars which
have been used to transport chemical or petroleum cargos.”

The Pretreatment standards for existing sources under 40 C.F.R. § 442.25 state that no
later than August 14, 2003, any existing source subject to this subpart which introduces
pollutants into a POTW must achieve pretreatment standards for non-polar material,
fluoranthene, and phenanthrene.

The Facility began a cleaning operation for rai} cars and tank trucks containing chemical
and/or pefroleum products in 1989 and 1990, respectively.

UTG operates a transportation equipment cleaning process, as it is defined at 40 C.F.R.
§ 442.1, and 1s an SIU subject to the transportation equipment cleaming effluent
guidelines for existing sources at 40 C.F.R. Part 442 Subpart A for Tank Trucks at

§ 442.15, and Subpart B for Rail Tank Cars at § 442.25.

40 C.F.R. § 403.5(c)(1) states that each POTW developing a POTW Pretreatment
Program pursuant to § 403.8 shall develop and enforce specific limits to implement the
prohibitions listed in paragraphs (a)(1) and (b) of this section. 40 C.F.R. § 403.5(d) states
that where specific prohibitions or limits on poilutants or pollutant parameters are
developed by a POTW in accordance with § 403.5(c), such limits shall be deemed’
Pretreatment Standards for the purposes of Section 307(d) of the CWA.

On March 12, 2007, the City of East Chicago adopted and passed Ordinance

No. 07-0007, “Wastewater Discharge Regulations™ at Chapter 13.13 of the Municipal
Code of the City of East Chicago, Indiana which established Specific Pollutant
Limitations at 13.13.3.02.3 (Local Limits), as required by 40 C.FR. § 403.5(c)1),
including Jimits for the following parameters: ammonia, copper, lead, oil and grease,
phenol, and phosphorous.

On June 6, 2011, UTG submitted a permit renewal entitled “Work Sheet & Application
for Sewer Connection” to ECSD which details its wastewater treatment process.

East Chicago issued a revised and amended industrial wastewater discharge permit for
Qutfali No. 521 (Permit No. 521) on January 24, 2013, allowing UTG to discharge waste
streams to ECSD's POTW, subject to certamn conditions. The Permit No. 521 authorizes
UTG to discharge Transportation Equipment Cleaning (TEC) and Centralized Waste

4
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Treatment (CWT) process wastewater into ECSDY's combined sewer system. See
Attackm}ent Al

On January 29-31 and September 26-27, 2013, EPA conducted on- szte compliance
mspections of the Facility (2013 Inspections).

Based on the information provided by UTG during the 2013 Inspections and as detailed
below, EPA finds that UTG is in violation of the General Preireatment Regnlations for
Existing and New Sources of Pollution at 40 C.F.R. Part 403 and the Pretreatment
standards for existing sources, Transportation Equipment Cleaning Point Source
Category at 40 C.F.R. Part 442,

40 C.F.R. § 403.5(a)(1) General Prohibitions state that a User may not introduce into a

POTW any poliutant(s) which cause Pass Through or Interference. In addition, 40 C.F.R.
§ 403.5(b)(4) Speciiic Prohibitions state that any poliutant released in a Discharge at a
flow rate and/or pollutant concentration which will cause Interference with the POTW
shall not be introduced into a POTW.

40 C.F.R. § 403.5(b)(6) states that petroleum oil, non-biodegradable cutting oil, or
products of mineral oil origin in amounts that will cause mterference or pass through
shall not be introduced into a POTW..

During the 2013 Inspections, EPA observed spilled petroleum on the ground, uncovered
roll-off boxes with discharge pathways from their bases, an oil sheer in standing storm
water adjacent to a storm drain leading to ECSID’s combined sewer system, and general
poor facihity spill control and maintenance.

ECSD reported oil and grease effluent violations on numerous dates, including
1/31/2010, 1/31/2012, 2/28/2012, and 2/28/2014. UTG’s poor containment practices
mtroduced oil and grease which cansed or contributed to pass through at the POTW on
numerous dates, In violation of 40 C.F.R. § 403.5(b)(6).

40 C.F.R. § 403.12(e)(1) states that any IU subject to a categorical Pretreatment Standard,
shall submit to the Control Authority during the months of June and December, a report
which indicates the nature and concentration of pollutants in the effiuent which are
limited by such categorical Pretreatment Standards. In addition, this report shall include a
record of measured or estimnated average and maximum daily flows for the reporting
pertod for the Discharge reported in paragraph (b)(4) of this section (Flow Measurement)
except that the Control Authority may require more detailed reporting of flows.

During the 2013 inspections, EPA inspectors observed that the Facility’s wastewater flow
meter stopped measuring flow after the wastewater treatment piant pumps had been
turned off, yet EPA observed a continued wastewater discharge for over an hour after
those pumps had been turned off, indicating inaccurate reporting of average and
maximum flow for every reporting period, in violation of 40 CF.R. § 403.12(e)(1).

40 C.F.R. § 403.12(g)(1} states that the reports required in paragraphs (b), (d}, (), and (h)
of this section shall contain the results of sampling and analysis of the Discharge,

5



including the flow and the nature and concentration of pollutants contained therein which
are limited by the applicable Pretreatment Standards.

40 CF.R. § 403.12(g)2) states that if sampling performed by an IU indicates a violation,

46.
the User shall notify the Control Authority within 24 hours of becoming aware of the
violation. The User shail also repeat the sampling and analysis and submit the results of -
the repeat analysis to the Control Authority within 30 days after becoming aware of the
violation.
47. From January 2010 through November 2012, UTG effluent samples indicated the
following exceedances of local Hmit parameters:
Sample Parameter Permit Limit, Reported Limit Type Sample
Collection Date | mg/L Value, me/L. | Collected By
1/19/2010 Ammonia - 77 135 Daily Max ECSD
I Nitrogen ]
1/19/2010 HEM - Ol and | 50 536 Daily Max ECSD
Grease
3/2/2010 Ammonia - 77 208 Daily Max ECSD
Nitrogen
3/2/2010 HEM - Oil and 50 191 Daily Max ECSD
Grease '
4/6/2010 Aramonia - 77 282 Daily Max ECSD
Nitrogen '
4/6/2010 HEM - Oil and 50 51 Daily Max ECSD
Grease :
9/30/2010 HEM - Oil and 50 152 | Daily Max ECSD
Grease - ‘
9/30/2010 HEM - Oil and 50 250 Daily Max UTG
Grease .
12/16/2010 Phenol 4-AAP 0.700 1.150 Daily Max ECSD
1/19/2011 Total 550 11.10 1 Daily Max ECSD
Phosphorus :
1/19/2011 Phenol - 4AAP 0.700 1.170 Daily Max ECSD
1/19/2011 Totzl Lead 0.2240 0.2290 Daily Max BCSD
1/19/2011 Total Copper 0.1700 0.2970 Daily Max ECSD




2/24/2011 HEM - Gil and 50 69 Daily Max UTG
Grease
3/25/2011 HEM - Oif and 50 56.4 Daily Max ECSD
{rease ]
4/6/2011 HEM - O] and 50 199.0 Draily Max ECSD
Grease |
5/26/2011 HEM - Oil and 50 140 | Daily Max uTG
Grease :
771272011 HEM - Oil and 50 170 Daily Max UTG
Grease : .
9/7/2011 HEM - Oil and 50 71 Daily Max UTG
: (rease
10/26/2011 HEM - Oil and 50 230 Daily Max UuTaG
Grease
12/29/2011 HEM - Oil and 50 80 Daily Max UTG
Grease 1
3/29/2012 HEM - (il and 50 290 Daily Max UTG
Grease :
4/18/2012 HEM - Ol and 50 ‘ 29 Daily Max UTG
(Grease
6/5/2012 HEM - Oil and 50 120 Daily Max UTG
Grease
7/16/2012 HEM - Q1 and 50 380 Daily Max UTG
Grease
11/29/2012 HEM . - Oil and 30 54. Daily Max - UTG
Grease

For each self~monitored effluent violation identified in the table above, UTG did not
notify ECSD within 24 hours after becoming aware of the effiuent violations, as required
by, and in violation of, 40 CF.R. § 403.12 {g)(2). :

UTG did not resample within 30 days of becoming aware of effluent exceedances from
samples collected on 9/30/2010, 2/24/2011, 5/26/2011, 7/12/2011, 9/7/2011, 12/29/2011,
4/18/2012, 7/10/2012, and 11/29/2012, in violation of 40 C.F.R. § 403.12(g)(2).

40 C.F.R. § 403.12{(g)(3) states that the reports required in paragraphs (b), (d), (¢), and (h)
must be based upon data obtained through appropriate sampling and analysis performed
during the period covered by the report, which data are representative of conditions
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occurring during the reporting period. 40 C.F.R. § 403.12(g)(3) further specifies
requirements for frequency of monitoring and appropriate methods for collecting
samples, inctuding the use of the protocois specified in 40 CFR part 136 and appropriate
EPA guidance.

40 C.FR. § 403.12(0}2) states that any TU subject to the reporting requirements
established in this section shall be required to retain for a minimum of three years any
records of monitoring activities and results (whether or not such monitoring activities are
required by this section) and shall make such records available for inspection and
copying by the Director and the Regional Administrator.

UTG was unable to provide all documentation of wastewater sample analysis for the

~ previous three years for all required effiuent parameters (including effluent limits

required by 40 C.F.R. §§ 442.15 and 442 25, and all ECSD local Limits) as was requested
by EPA during the 2013 Inspections and following the inspections, in violation of
40 C.FR. §§ 403.12(gX1) and (0)(2).

40 C.FR. § 403.17(d) pl’OhlbltS the intentional diversion of wastestreams from any
portion of an IU’s treatment facility.

Puring the January 2013 EPA Inspection, EPA inspectors observed that the wastewater
freatment system was not operating as it is described in UTG’s June 6, 2011 permat .
renewal application. In addition, several wastewater treatment units were not in dperation
and significant portions of the freatment process were not being utilized prior to the
wastewater discharge.

During at least the January 2013 EPA Inspection, UTG was intentionally diverting
wastestreams around portions of 1ts wastewater treatment process in violation of
40 C.F.R: §403.17(d).

40 CF.R. § 403.12(b) states that at least 90 days prior to commencement of discharge,
New Sources, and sources that become TUs subsequent to the promulgation of an
applicable categorical Standard, shall be required to submit to the Control Authority a
report which contains the information listed in paragraphs (b){(1)~(5) of thus section -
baseline report. New sources shall also be required to include in this report information
on the method of pretreatment the source intends to use to-meet applicable pretreatment
standards.

UTG’s June 23, 2009, and January 24, 2013, Industrial Wastewater Discharge Permits for
Outfall No. 521 identify Centralized Waste Treatment (CWT) Point Scurce Category
Subpart D third party waste streams which are authonized to be accepted and treated in
compliance with requirements at 40 CE.R. § 437.47,

40 C.F.R. § 437.47(a)(2) states that the discharger will notify its local control authority at

‘the time of submitting its application for an individual control mechanism or pretreatment

agreement of its desire to be subject to Multiple Waste Subcategory by submitting to the
local control aathority an initial certification statement as described in § 437.41(a).



60.

61,

62.

63.

64.

66.

As of the date of this Order, UTG has not submitied 2 baseline report or an initial
certification statement required by 40 C.F.R. § 437.47(a}2) to begin operation as a CWT
under the CWT Categorical Pretreatment Standard at 40 C.F.R. Part 437 in violation of
40 C.FR. §403.12(b).

Ina separate Administrative Consent Order under Sections 308(a) and 309(a) of the
CWA, 33 U.S.C. §§ 1318(a) and 1319(a), Respondent and its assigns have agreed to
undertake tasks and reporting to ensure compliance with the CWA.

The CWA includes provisions for administrative penalties for violations of the CWA,
Specifically, EPA may assess civil administrative penalties under 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)
and 40 C.F.R. Part 19 0of $11,000 per day for each violation that occurred after March 15,
2004 through January 12, 2009, and $16,000 per day for each violation that occurred
after January 12, 2009. An Administrative Penalty action may total up to §177,500 for
actions filed after January 12, 2009 up to December 6, 2013 or up to $187,500 for actions
filed after December 6, 2013.

TERMS OF SETTLEMENT

For the purpose of this proceeding and according to 40 C.FR. § 22.18(b) and (c),
Respondent: (a)} admits that EPA has jurisdiction over the subject matter set forth in this
consent agreement; (b) neither admits nor denies the facts stipulated in this consent
agreement; and (¢) consents to the terms of this CAFO.

Based upoh the penalty factors set forth in Section 309(g) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C.
§ 1319(g), EPA and Respondent agree to settle this action for $1,000.

This CAFO settles the civil violations alleged in paragraphs 15 through 59 of this CAFO.

Upon execution of the final order attached hereto, Respondent waives all rights to request
a judicial or admintstrative hearing on any issue of law or fact set forth in this consent
agreement, including, but not limited to, its right to request a hearing under Section
309(g)2)B) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 1319(g)(2XB), and its right to appeliate review of
the attached final order found at Section 309(g)}8)(B) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C.

§ 1319(2)(8)(B).

Respondent agrees to pay the $1,000 civil penalty for the alleged violations by mailing a
certified or cashier’s check made payable to “Treasurer, United States of America” to the
following address:

[for checks sent by reguiar U.S. Postal Service mail|

U. S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties

Cincinnati Finance Center

P.O. Box 979077

St. Louts, MO 63197-9000
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tfor checks sent by express mail]

.S, Bank

Government Lockbox 979077
U.S. EPA Fines and Penalties
1005 Convention Plaza

Mail Station SL-MO-C2GL
St. Louts, MO 63101

Payment of the civil penalty 1s due within thirty (30) calendar days from the effective
date of this CAFO, which 1s the date that the CAFO is filed with the Regional Hearing
Clerk.

A transmittal letter, stating Respondent’s name, the case title, Respondent’s complete
address, and the case docket number must accompany the payment.

The chéck must note the case caption and the docket number of this CAFQ.

When Respondent pays the civil penalty in accordance with Paragraph 66 above,
Respondent shall simultaneously and separately send notice of such payment, including a

copy of the check and transmittal letter, to each of the following three parties at the

address ir;dicated:

Regional Hearing Clerk

Planning and Management Division (19])
1J.8. EPA Region 3

77 West Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, lllinois 60604

and

Kathleen Schnieders

~ Office of Regional Counsel (C-14])
U S.EPA Region 5
77 West Fackson Boulevard
Chicago, Ilinois 60604

and

Michelle Heger

Water Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Branch (WC-155)
US.EPA Region 5

77 West Jackson Boulevard

Chicago, linois 60604

This eivil penalty 1s not deductible for federal tax purposes.
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Respondent’s failure to pay the assessed civil nenalty in accordance with the provisions
of this CAFO will result in the referral of this matter to the United States Department of
Justice for collection in accordance with Section 309%(g)(9) ¢f the CWA, 33 U.S.C.

§ 1319(gX9). In such an action, the validity, amount, and appropriateness of such penalty
shall not be subject to review. In addition to any unpaid balance and interest on this
penalty, Respondent shall also be required to pay attorney’s fees and costs for collection
proceedings and a quarterly nonpayment penalty. This nonpayment penalty shall be in an
amount equal to 20% of the aggregate amount of Respondents® penalties and nonpayment
penalties which are unpaid as of the beginning of each such quarter.

Interest shall accrue on any amount overdue under the terms of this CAFQ at an annual
rate calculated in accordance with 40 C.F.R. § 13.11.

GENERAT PROVISIONS

This CAFO resolves Respondent’s Hability and assigns federal civil penalties for the
violations and facts alleged m this CAFO.

This CAFO does not affect the right of EPA or the United States to pursue appropriate
injunctive relief or other equitable relief or criminal sanctions for any violations of law.
EPA reserves all rights and remedies, legal and equitable, available to address any
violation cited in this Order, any other violation of the CWA, and to enforce this Order.
Neither issuance of this Order by EPA nor comphiance with its terms precludes further
enforcement action pursuant to Section 309 ofthe CWA, 33 UU.S.C. § 1319, for the
violations cited herein, for any other violations of the CWA committed by Respondent, or
to enforce this Order. '

This CAFO does not affect Respondent’s responsibility and duty to comply with the
CWA, or other federal, state, or local laws or regulations.

The terms of this CAFO bind both parties, their officers, directors, employees,
successors, and assigns to this action. The representative of each party signing this
consent agreement certifies that he or she has authority to enter into the terms of this
consent agreement and bind that party to it. Respondent shall give notice and a copy of
this CAFO to any successor in interest prior to any transfer of ownership or operational
control of the Facilty.

Each party agrees to bear its own costs and fees accrued in the course of this action.

The effective date of this CAFO is the date that the Final Order signed by the Acting
Regional Admintstrator or his designated representative is filed with the Regional
Hearing Clerk. This CAFO 1s subject to the public notice requirements of Section
309(g}4)C) of the CWA, 33 U.S.C. § 131%g)(4)C).

Complainant is providing public notice of and reasonable opportunity to comment on the
proposed 1ssuance of the CAFO according to section 309(g)(4} of the CWA, 33 U.S.C.

3 1319(g)4).
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In the Matter of: United Transportation Groun, Inc. Respondent.

East Chicago, Indiana
Docket Number: CWA-05-2017-0001

For Respondent:

United Transportation Group, Inc.

Date: (/?72 %/ ‘s

I
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United Tr.

sportation Group, Inc.



In the Matter of: United Transportation Group, Inc.. Respondent.

Fast Chicago, Indiana
Docket Number: CWA_0542017-0001

For Complainant:

United States Environmental Protection Agency
Region 5

Date: {?:///; )@/ '/ﬁ;@

Tl P

kaa . Hyde

Director, Water Division

United States Environmental Protection Agency
Region 5



* Docket Number:  CWA-05-2017-0001

In the Matter of: United Transportation Group, Inc.. Respondent.
East Chicago, Indiana

FINAL ORDER

This Consent Agreement and Final Order, as agreed to by the parties, shall become effective
immediately upon filing of this Order with the Regjonal Hearing Clerk. This Final Order
concludes this proceeding pursuant to 40 C.F.R. §§ 22.18 and 22.31.

IT IS SO ORDERED

2ol I N A 4

Amn L. Coyle

Regional Judicial Officer

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 5

14
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Attachment A
United Transportation Group Permit No. 521
J Permif Issued by East Chicago Sé;nitai;y District
| Jaruary 24, 2013 _ |
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S A T TR A Nickie Geras
_\,L PY OF EAST uEECﬂGG Pre-Treatment Coordinator
- ; East Chicaga Sanitary District
Wastewater Division
5201 Indianapolis Botlevard
East Chicago, IN 463132
Phone: (219) 321-8464
 Fax:{2191391-3254

January 24, 2013

Fred Davig ‘
United Transportation Group
1150 B. 145" Street
East Chicago, IN 46312

RE: Permit Revised and Amended for OQutfall No. 521 2013
to include the Centralized Waste Treatmet (CWT) Categorical Regulations

Dear Mr. Davis:

Please find a revised permit with the revisions regarding the CWT Regulation.per our meeting on
Jamuary 11. I have placed the changes in the permit along with the methods. There were some errors
made to the previous permit regarding parameters for the CWT. The methods and limits were not

- comrect. In regards to the CWT parameters, barfum is ro longer on the list.

The Categorical sampling shail be done in Juge and December of each year adcording to federal

regulation code.
.

If you should have any questions regarding the permit or any changes, please do not hesitate to contact
me at 391-8466. Thank you..
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+ BAST CHICAGO SANITARY f*EhTEl'CT
- BAST CHICAGO, INDIANA
INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT
NCY. 521
ISEUED TO

WITT?E T?EAJ“JSP@ éﬁATE@N GR@{:

EFFECTIVE DATE: Jamafy"z:@, 2013

. Signed this 24th day of Tanuary, 2013,
For the '-East Chicago Sanitary District,

Peter S, Bar;anjfaz
Direetor of Utilities
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Permittee:

Existing Permit:
Informaten:

Source Contact:

Source Lacation:

Receiving POTW:

Froposed Acton:

Souree Category:

Permit Writer:

Neme: United Transpostation Group
Address: 1150 E. 145% Street

City,State, ZIP Bast Chicago, IN, 46312

Permit Number: 521
Expiration Date: January 23, 2015

Name, Phone Number: Fred Davis
‘Fitle: Operator

Address: 1150 E. 145" Street
City, State Fast Chicago, IN
County: Lake

Name: East Chicago Sanitary District Wastewater Division
Address: 5201 Indianapolis Blvd.

City, State ZIP: Bast Chicage, TN 46312

NPDES Permith: 0022829 -

*Choose One® -
New Permit:

Renew Permit:
Modify Permit: X
Terminate Permit:

Date Application Receiv_éd: Novémber 2012
Industrial Permit

Name: Niclie Geros -
Title and Contact Info: Pretreatment Coordinator, 215-391-8466
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\GO-SANTTARY DISTRICT
AST CHICAGO, INDIANA
INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATER DISCHARGE PERMIT

gy In compliance with A’rt‘ic’#e-‘l 5.01 {General pormits) of the Fast Chicago Wast¥w ater
Discliarge Reselotion No. S 93- 1 {va:m ance Mo, 0-03-0017} (hereinafier “Drdinance™), the ﬁaaz

Chicage Sanitary Distrct (hercinafter “District™), by the issuance of this permit, authorizes

Umaad TL 811%;391{311{}11 Gmhp {hcluﬂlﬁf[@l‘ pci mzttap ;
SIC Code: 4741 Rail
7699 Track

i discharge the follewing, and only the & ﬁ{}*nsilaga speeific wastewafer stIe arns Troin 1ts facihity located
a{;_ . ; . oe oA - - o A e e e e don -

1 15-@ Hast 14‘5‘1‘ S‘?ﬁge‘@t

to the District's publzd ¥ owned Eea‘[mept works fhereinafer T‘@I‘W_ s

i Centralized Waste Trea‘mem Peint Seuree Caﬁ:@g@ry W sabpzrf D-Multiple XVastﬂ
streams part 413747 (PSNS)

i) ‘Trensportation Egu‘pmmt Cleaning Point Souree Category part 442

1Ly Rail tank ears transporting chemical and petroleum cargos .

#)  Tenk trucks and Intermodal tank conftainers transporting chemical and petralewm cargos

V) Saﬂitafy wasteater ‘

This permit sets forth Lhe standards requirsd of the perinittes by the Districtio ensuze ﬁﬁmphancﬁ with
the lirnitations and condifons of the Urdinance and, where appiicable, standurds established by the
State or Federal suthorities. Unless @thrwwe spetifed, these reguirements:shall take effect upon
isguance of this permit end-shall vemain i ¢ effeet until the expiration date of this permutor uatil the
persit is modified in dccordance wﬁh Article 13.13.5.023 (Permit Modifications) of the Ordinance,

bj By the issnance of | t%:ﬂs permit, the District acknowledges that the permitiee has complied with the
_reqmle:nems set forth in Article13.13.5.02.2 {Pam:u’t Appleation) of the Gidinance.

&) By the Issuance of this permit, e Dlistrict ackno ﬁledﬁres ‘i‘hat the permittes hag paid the assessed
ae«:mii-&pmh&aﬁsn s pmwéﬁé in Articls 13.13.4.03 (Permit Application’ Fees} of the O dmancp

4} in CUH&?},LQLOL: with Article 13. 13.5.02. Ak of the @Admam;u the District desizna RS both this pezmit.
and the permitiee's discharge and sampling Ioce_tmn By the identification number 52

&) In aceordance with Articles 13.13.5.02.3 (Permit Modifications) and 13.13.5.02.5 (Permits
Truration) of the Ordinances, both th i permit aud the authorization to discharge shall expire five (5)
vears from the date of tssuance. -

) In accordance with Axticle 13.13.5.02.6 {Limitations on Perinit Transfer) of the Ordinanee, the
District forbids the employment of this pemnit by any wier than the permitiee named in Part ) a) of
this perzit. The District alsp forbids the smployment of this permit for any purposs, or auy lecation,
giher than these specified in Part Da) of this pemnit
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IT) a} The permittee shall at no time discharge wastewater containing pollutants in excess of any of the
following specific pollutant limitations as established by Article 13.13.3.02.3 (Specific Pollutant
Limitations) of the Ordinance: :

These fimitations are for the CWT point source category part £37.25.

Metal '
Parameter
=Total
Chromium (1)
Copper {T)
Lead (T)
Nickel (T)
Zine (1)
Organies
bis(2-ethylhexyl)
phthalate
Carbazoie
n-Decane

Fluoranthene

n-Octadecane

. Limitation

sample Type

0.282 mg/LL ECSD  composite

0.282 mg/L

0.170 mg/L ECSD

B0 mg/L - -

0.224 mg/L ECSD
0.160 mg/L

3.95 mg/L
145 mg/L

2.87 mg/L

6.641 mg/l.

0.267 mg/lL
0.158 mg/L
(.392 mg/L
0.233 mg/L
579 mgll
331 meg/L
0.690 mg/L
$4.393 mg/L
122 ma/l,

composite
composite

composite

composite

~ composite

conposite

_ composite

composiie
composite
composite
composite

" comnposite

cormposite

SM 18™ ED ,
Method Number Limit Type
200.7 daily max
monthly avg.
200.7 daily max
C e - FEGHLhI}? ave.
200.7 daily max
- monthly avg,
Z00.7 " daily max
, monthly ave.
2007 daily max
- monthly avg,
625 daily max
625 monthly avg.
625 daily max
025 monthly avg,
625 daily max
625 monthly avg.
625 daily max
625 monthly avg,
625 daily max

This speeific list of contaminants shall not relieve the permittes of its responsibility to cornply with all
other specific pollutants as listed in the Ordinance 13.13.3.02.3. The district requires complete

comphiance with the Sewer User Ordinance and compliance with ail local Hmitations:

PARAMETER

Cadmium
Chromium, Total

- Copper-

Cyanide (fice) -
Lead

Mercury

* Molybdenum
Nickel
Silver

REE Tt
(0.282 mg/l
0.170 mg/L
0.003 mg/L
0.224 mg/L
0.0002 mg/L
32  ng/l

- 02 mg/t
0320 mg/L,

- 0.05

com;iesfﬁe
composite
- composite
. composite
" composiie
composite

composite

composite

composite

EPA Test Method

.- _ . Limit Type

. daily-max

daily max

- daily max

200.7 daily max

4500-CN-G SM daily max

2007 daity max

1631, Revision & daily max

246.2 datly max
200.7 daily max -

2007 daily max
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Zinc
Ammonia-Nitrogen
Thalfyvum

Total Phosphorus
Fluoride

01l and Grease
pH
Phenols,4-AAP
Residual Chlorine
Fluoranthene
Bis(Zethylhexyl)
Phthalate

}{LLESLJ\ JED: am
s

Modifications)].

- ¢) The pemn’ftee shall cempfy with the discharge prohibitions listed in Articles 3.01 (Ge;ue il
Discharge Prohibitions) and 13.13.3.02.5 (Dijution) of the Ordinance.

5.5 mg/L

77 meg/L

43mgll

5.5mg/l
2.9 mg/L
50 mg/L-
<5 and >10-5.U.
0.7 mg/L

Qﬁrffg/L

0.6% mg/L
1.03 mg/t.

composite

composite

composite
composite
COmIposite
orib
orab

COILPOSHE .

grab
grab

200.7

200.7

4500 B-5M

4500 F-C-SM
1664, Revision A
150

420.1

625

625

menis(s) prrsuant to Article 13:13:5.02:3 ofthe Ordinance (Penmit - -

d} The permittee shall comply with the discharge prohibitions hsted in Amclﬁ 13.13.3.012

(Limtah ons on Trucked or Hauled Waste) of the Crdinance.

ITT) The permittes shall comply with all the conditions of Article 13.13.5.06 (Pretreatment) of the

Crdinance.

4500-NIE3 FSM

daily max
daily max
daily max
daily max
daily max
daily max

- instantaneous

daily max
instantaneous
daily max
datly max

IVja) The permittee shall comply with all the conditions of Article 13:13:5.04 2) (Monitoring-—— == ==
Facilities and Calibration Requirements) of the Ordinance, and shall secure the District's approval of
all devices and methods prior to operation. The monitoring facility is located inside of the

pretreatment building, which is 1150 East 145" Street, where the effluent discharges at the end of

treatment with a flow meter. The monitoring point s identified as No. 521,

by Pursuant to Article 1

3.13.5.04.b (Calibration Requirements) of the Ordinance, the permiitee shall

submit to the District written notification that calibration and mainterance have been performed on
cach flow-measuring device employed by the permittes. Said notification shail be submitted every
April and October, and shall be signed by an authorized representative of the permiftee. - -

V) a) Pursnant to Article 13.13.5.02.4(f) of the Ordinance, the permittee will be required to perform

self-monitormg.



_ Subpart A-442 15 Tank Treeks and Intermodal Tank Containers ' ﬂramcporﬁn hemical &
Petroleum Cargos i
- EPA Test Method 7
PARAMETER Sample Tvpe Number Sample Frequency  Limit & Tvpe
Non-polar Grab. - : 1664 2% per year 26 mg/L daily
material (SGT- ' o ‘ 7 max
Copper _ - composite 220.2 2% per year 0.170 mg/L daily
Mereury composite 1631, Revision E 2x per year 0.0002 ng/L.
' ' (nanogram/l,)daily
max

Subpart B~p3rt 442 I5-Rail Tank Cars Tz ansporiing Chemical & Pet}:aieum C&rm&s
. EPA Test Method o oot
PARAMETER Sampiﬂ Time Number Sample Frequengv Famit & Type

Non-polar - Grab : lee4 -  2x peryear . 26 mg/L daily
material (SGT- ' ' - | max
Fluoranthene composite 625  2x per year 0076 me/l da_il}f
Phenanthrene composite o625 : 2% per year - 034m _,/I ang

Wheu any self-monitoring is pyzformed it Shomd be m accgrdaﬂ = with Title 40 CFR Part 136 ,

Analytical data will be reported to the District within thirty (30) days.. If the sampling performed by

‘the permittes indicates a violation, the permittec shall notify the District within twent} four (24) hous
of becoming aware of the violation, and resample within thirty (30) days.

b} The permities is required to subrmit to the District ail data obtained through any self-monitoring of 2
discharge conducted in accordance with Title 40 CFR part 136. This data must be submitied within -
thirty (30) days of sampling. -

¢) If the permittes monitors any poliutant more frequently than required by the District (if required by |
the Bistrict), using the procedures prescribed in Title 40 CFR Part 136, the resulta of this monitoring
must be submitted to the District within thirty (30) days. :

d) The District shall rouiinely monitor the permitted discharge for compliance with this pemt and the
ordinance. The District will charpe the permittes for the cost to conduct this monitoring, Self-
monitoring by the permitice can be conducted in lie: of some District monitoring, if desired by the
permittee. This permit can be modified by the District at the permrftee s request to include additional
self-monitoring by the permitiee for this purpose.

Via) In cornpliance with Arficle 13 13.5.03.2 (Cornpliance Repoits) of the Ordinance, the permittee is
not reguired to submit two (2) compliance reports muahy due to the information submitted through
monthly reperts and monthly *no*ntonng

b) In accordance with Article 13.13.5.03.5 (Spill Control Plans) of the Ordinance, Spill Control Plans
will be submitted on a b1enmal bastis to the District. ,
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¢ In compliance with Article 13.13.3.03 (Accidental Discharges) of the Ordinance, and in the event of
an accidental discharge of either prohibited substances or an excess of f regulated substances to the
POTW, the permittes shall alert the Distict immediately upon occurrence. Within five (5) working
days of the cocurrence, the permities shall provide written notification of the discharge. The
notification shall specify no Iess than the following:

i} the location of the discharge;

ii} the date and time of the discher ge; :
iy the type of waste discharged, T
iv} the concentration and volume of the waste; and
v) an explanation of corrective actions taken.

43 In compliance with Article 13.13.6.08 (Operating Upsets) of the Ordinance, and in the event of an
operaitng wpset; the permtttee shall aleit the Disirict within 24 hows of recopniton of the upset.
Within five (5) days of recognition of the upset, the permittes shall submif a wrfrten follow-up report.
The report shall specify no less than the following: -

1) a description of the upset and its Cause; -
i) the impact of the upset on the permittee's comphiance status;
11) the duration of non-compliance, including exact dates and times of noncompliance;
1v) If noncompliance confinues, the date by which compliance should be attained; an
v) an explanation of actions fo be taken o prevent rectireence of an upset or other conditions of
non~cemplzaﬂce -

ey In the event of a non-accidental discharge of any prohibited substance or an excess of regulated

substances to the POTW, the permittee shall alert the District immediately upon occurrence. Within
five {5) working days of the cocurrence, the permittee shall provide written notification of the
Discharge, Thv notification shall specify no less than the following:

1} the location of the discharge;
i) the date and time of the discharge;
iii) the type of waste discharged;
iv) the concentration and volume of the waste; and
- ) znexplanation of corrective actions taken.

) In the event of any slug discharge or any other discharge which could cause probiems to the POTW,

~ which shall mean any pollutant, including oxygen demanding pollutants (BOD, COD, etc.), pollutants
which create a fire or explosion hazard, pollutants which will canse corrosive structural damage, solid
or viscons pollutants in amounts which will cause an obstruction to the flow in the POTW, or any heat -
in amounts which will inhibit biclogical activity in the POTW, released in such a single extracrdinary

- discharge episode of such volume or strength as to cause interference to the POTW, the permittee shall
alert the District immediately upon occurrence. Within five working days of the ocourrence, the
permittee shall provide written notification of the discharge. The notfication shall specify no less than
the following:. :

i} the locaiion of the dischaLge
i) the date and time of the discharge;
i) the type of waste discharged;



Page 9 of 10 In aqmai Wastewater Discharge Permit Outfall No. 521 o

iv) the conceriration and volume of the waste; and
V) an explanation of corrective actions taken.

Signs shall be permanently posted in conspicuous places on the Discharger's premises, advising -
erployees whom to call in the event of a slug, accidental, or non-aceidental discharge. Employers
shall instruct all employees who may cavse or discover such a 615(:13& rge with respect to emergency
notification procedures.

g) Pursnant to Article 13.13.5.03.6 (Hazardous Waste Notification) of the Ordinance, the permittes
shall subroit to the District, on a biennial basis, a list of all substances present in each discharge which,

if disposed of by other means would be considered hazardous as defined by 40 CER, Part 261.

h) Pursuant to Article 13.13.5.03.7 (Notification of Changed Discharge) of the Ordinancs, the

permittee shail notify the District iy advance of any substantial change i mp Voliine and/or charactel

of poliutants in each discharge.
i) The above-mention sed reports, and all other reports, comrespondence, and information as the Disfrict
may require shall be sigped and date by an authorized representative of the perrmttee‘

i} The permities shall comply with the inspection and sempling 1\,qmremems hstf:d m Article.
13.13.5.05 (In:,nf*c‘czon and Samphing) of the Ordinance. = :

k) The permittee in order to operate a wastewater or water treatment plant, shall have an dperator with
the qualifications as established in the Indiana Administrative Code, Title 327-1AC-8-12-3, Seciion
3(g). In accordance with Title 327-IAC-8-12-1(8), “operator” shall mean the person in direct or

responstble charge and supervisimg the operation of a wastewater or water treatment plant end/ora — 7

water distribution system. Al industrial pretreatment facilities shall be classified per Title 327-TAC-§-
12-2(b). These classifications shall be based on the type of ftreatment afforded, destgn population
equivalent, and the average daily flow.

VID)a) The permittee shall comply with all requirernents of this permit and with all requnements of the
Ordmance not specifically rererenced by the permit. :

b) In eny event of non-compliance, the permittee shall be subject to all applicable enforcement actions
as set forth in Article Six (Enforcement) of the Ordinance, and all applicable penalties set forth in
Article Seven {(Penalties) of the Ordinance. Any permm e who is found to have violated an order of
the District or who has failed fo comply with any provision of the Ordinance, and the rerrulatlons or
rules of the District, or orders of any court of competent jurisdiction or petmiits issued hereunder, shall
be'liable for a penalty of up to $2,500.00 per violation, per day. zach day that a violation occurs shall
be deemed a separate offense and subject 1o penalty.

VI The permitiee shall take all reasonable steps to minimize or correct any adverse impact on the
environment resulting from non-compliance with the permit, including such accelerated or additional
momnitoring as the District may require determining the nature and impact of the non- complymg
discharge.



In the matter of: United Transportation Group, Inc., Respondent
Docket Number: CWA-05-2017-0001

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that T served a true and correct copy of the foregoing Consent Agreement and Final
Ovrder, which was filed on f/ 3/ ggf? . In the following manner to the addressees:

Copy by Certified Mail to

Respondent, Retumn-receipt: Michael Pellin
United Transportation Group, Inc.
1150 East 145™ Street
East Chicago, Indiana 46312

Copy by Certified Mail to

Attomey for Respondent,

Return-receipt: Michael T. Scanlon
Barnes & Thomburg, LLP
11 South Mendian Street
Indianapolis, Indiana 46204-3535

Copy by E-mail to
Attorney for Complainant: Kathleen Schnieders
schnieders.kathleen@epa.gov

Copy by E-mail to
Regional Judicial Officer: Amn Coyle
covie.annlaepa.gov

4

Davfrn I ehead |
Reégional Hearing Clerk
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5

CERTIFIED MAIL RECEIPT NUMBER(S): 7009 1ka0 D000 ?BHE 0235



